COPY

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF APPEALS

FOR THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

2006-^{CP}~~A~~-1249

**Betty W. Sephten, Court Clerk
Supreme Court & Court of Appeals
Post Office Box 249
Jackson, MS 39205-0249**

FILED

JAN 08 2008

**OFFICE OF THE CLERK
SUPREME COURT
COURT OF APPEALS**

APPELLANT BRIEF

**CHARLES RUDD #L7678
Unit 29-IBuilding
Parchman, MS 38738**

**IN THE SUPREME COURT OF APPEALS
FOR THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI**

CHARLES RUDD

vs.

CASE NO: 99-0393 & 2002-0229

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

MEMORANDUM BRIEF IN SUPPORT OF APPEAL

Procedural History

On or about July 17, 2002, a plea of guilt was entered on behalf of the petitioner for the Charges of Armed Robbery and Escape. On or about October 17, 2003, petitioner was sentenced to a term of (30) THIRTY years, (10) Ten years suspended, five (5) years on supervised probation and fifteen (15) years to serve in MDOC (Miss. Dept. of Corr.). On or about October 2, 2004, petitioner filed for a writ of Habeas Corpus, which was treated as a Post Conviction, for Armed Robbery

On or about March 1, 2005, petitioner filed a writ of Habeas Corpus for escape On or about April 8, 2005, petitioner was denied his writ of Habeas Corpus for escape On or about November 15, 2005, petitioner resubmitted writ of Habeas Corpus amending errors On or about January 25, 2006, an adjournment was ordered dismissing petitioner's writ as time barred. On or about February 6, 2006, petitioner submitted a Notice of Appeal and a Designation of Record. On or about April 17, 2006, petitioner submitted a letter to Supreme Court, requesting status of appeal. On or about May 16, 2006 there was a Response sent stating no writ was sent, contact lower court. On or about May 29, 2006, petitioner contacted the lower court

Summary Of Supplemental Arguments

On or about September 13, a petitioner resubmitted Notice of Appeal & Designation of Record
On or about September 26, 2006, a copy of Notice of Appeal & Designation of Record was sent to petitioner
On or about October 26, 2006 appellant filed a motion for document in the Court of Appeals
On or about October 31, 2006, Records still had not been sent by lower court
On or about November 27, 2006, petitioner submitted a written Request to Court of Appeals, to compel
the lower court and/or transcriber to send all clerk's papers in this case
On or about December 6, 2006, Court of Appeal sent petitioner copies of letters sent to Court and
the courts transcriber
On or about December 8, 2006, petitioner submitted a letter to Court of Appeals complaining of the
continued burden and injustice the trial court has been placing on him.
On or about December 20, 2006, trial court sent an order obliging motion for counsel
On or about January 10, 2007, petitioner contacted the Court of Appeals about the motion for counsel
On or about July 16, 2007, petitioner again complained about the hindrance by trial court
On or about July 10, 2007, Supreme Court issued a Show Cause Notice to Court Reporter,
lower court Judge, Clerk, and Counsel of Record, advising them to send documents or be sanctioned within 14
days of the order.

On or about August 16, 2007, petitioner received Records from the lower court
On or about August 28, 2007 petitioner filed a motion to correct Records sent by trial court
On or about September 11, 2007 an order was issued ordering the trial court to correct Records
by October 19, 2007 as well as decide whether supplementation was appropriate
On or about October 7, 2007, petitioner filed with lower court a Records Request
On or about October 22, 2007, petitioner filed a motion for Declaration Relief to vacate sentence
On or about November 26, 2007, petitioner filed an Affidavit for Entry of Default Judgment
On or about November 28, 2007, petitioner was allowed to file any supplement based he deems necessary
On or about December 5, 2007, petitioner's motion for Declaratory Relief was denied
On or about December 10, 2007, petitioner received another incorrect copy of Records.

Appellant contends that he was unlawfully induced, coerced and deceived, and as a result an involuntary guilty plea was made on behalf of the petitioner, because he argues he was ignorant to the enhanced charge of escape, that he was not in fact a prisoner at the said Madison County Sheriff's Department as stated in Bill of Information, but a pre-trial detainee at the Madison County Jail and petitioner contends the state used that to enhance the charge, being that he had not yet started trial deeming him still a pre-trial detainee and not in fact a prisoner. See Guilty Plea Hearing pg 2, lines 6+7.

Where petitioner enters an involuntary guilty plea when record shows that he was not allowed to read plea agreement, when attorney admitted to not including minimum and maximum time for escape, when petitioner stated on record, he did not wish to plea, he wanted to go to trial, he did not want to continue with his attorney and could he set another trial date, only to be denied all, when trial court admitted to knowing petitioner did not wish to plea, or when punishment upon motion to plea was so misleading as to cause confusion, coercion, and/or deception and when petitioner admitted to not being aware.

Supplemental Argument And Brief

Petitioner argues that he has denied a fair pretrial process from its very beginning and that unfairness has continued throughout the trial process and still during his appeal process, denying him the fundamental fairness essential for justice to prevail, when trial court showed prejudice by not only improperly dismissing his petition for writ of Habeas Corpus, which was elected to be treated as a Post Conviction Relief, because of a time bar that was met, when defendant was coerced and deceived to accept a plea of guilty even though he did not wish to continue with counsel who he felt was not acting in his favor, where the ineffective assistance of counsel to properly represent the defendant to the best of her ability, by failure to truthfully state the minimum and maximum punishment for the charges pled to, failing to proper notification was presented to witnesses in favor of petitioner, when trial court denied him the right to remove counsel from his case after Verbal Request was made, when court allow indictment to be amended the day of trial, the Bill of Information was used to enhance the change of attempt to escape to escape, and the errors continue as the trial court continue to deny him his due process right.

Petition to Enter Guilty Plea pg. 4; Re. 1 to Proceed By Bill of Information and Verbal Affidavit, where it clearly states Attempted Escape.

Rule 8.04(A)(3) Entry of Guilty Pleas states: Voluntary. Before the trial court may accept a plea of guilty, the court must determine that the plea is voluntarily and intelligently made and that there is "factual" basis for the plea. A guilty plea is not voluntarily if induced by fear, violence, deception or improper inducements. It showing that the plea of guilt was voluntary and intelligently made must appear on record. Petitioner argues that record shows this plea of guilty was in fact involuntary, when court openly admits that petitioner did not want to plead guilty, when petitioner was forced to keep counsel who he felt was not working toward his best interest, and when he stated he did not commit the crime in question, that he wanted to go to trial, and that he had been coerced, confused and deceived plus he did not sign his plea agreement as stated in Rule 8.04(A)(3).

According to Myers v. State, (Miss. 1991) 583 So. 2d 174, failure to inform petitioner of the minimum and maximum sentence is reversible error, because had he known he was being deceived to accept an enhanced charge, referring to the escape, he would not have accepted the plea of guilty. See Strickland v. Washington, 466 US 668, 104 S.Ct. 2052; Walker v. State, 703 So. 3d 266, 268, (Miss. 1992).

Petitioner argues that his plea of guilty and agreement to the Bill of Information are both involuntary according to Rule 4.0 of the Criminal Rules which states: Defense counsel shall not conclude any plea bargaining on behalf of his/her client without his/her clients "full and complete" consent... Defense counsel shall advise defendant of "all" pertinent matters bearing on the choice of the plea to enter and likely result or alternatives. [Emphasis added]. The same was said in Rule 8.04(B)(3) Plea Bargaining. Petitioner contest these very errors occurred when petitioner did not sign his plea agreement or any other document the day of pleading. See signature on petition to plea and Memorandum Brief.

Issue Two

Whether petitioner is denied effective assistance of counsel when record shows that defendant was not allowed to read plea agreement, when witnesses on his behalf was not notified, when counsel fails to make the petitioner aware of the minimum and maximum punishment.

Petitioner contends that defense counsel erred when she did not advise him to read his plea agreement, See (Guilty Plea Hearing pg. 4, Lines 22-29 & pg. 5, Lines 1-2), which he argues was later changed from the plea agreement discussed with counsel. See (Petition to Enter Guilty Plea pg. 4) In doing this, the petitioner argues that counsel should have informed him of the changes in the agreement, yet he was not.

It was said in Cuyler v. Sullivan *supra*, 446 U.S., at 346, 90 S.Ct., at 1717, Representation of a criminal defendant entails certain basic duties. Counsel's function is to assist the defendant, and hence counsel owes the client a duty of loyalty, a duty to avoid conflicts of interest. Counsel's function as assistant to the defendant derive the overarching duty to advocate the defendant cause and the more particular duties to consult with the defendant informed of important developments in the course of the prosecution. See Dowell v. Alabama, 287, U.S., at 68-69, 53 S.Ct., at 63-64. This is why petitioner feels counsel erred when plea agreement was altered without his knowledge.

Other errors appeared on the record made by defense counsel when she admitted to not including the minimum and maximum punishment for escape and petitioner admits to not being aware either. See (Guilty Plea Hearing pg. 2, Lines 6-7 and pg. 24, Lines 1-13).

In Myers v. State (1991 Miss.) 583 So.2d 174, which provided a basis for relief. Or is Strickland v. Washington, 466 US 668, 104 S.Ct. 2052; Walker v. State, 703 So. 2d 266, 268 (Miss. 1992), which said that failure of counsel to advise Petitioner of the maximum and minimum penalties provided by law rendered counsel's performance deficient.

Issue Three

Whether the trial court abused in power of discretion or erred by allowing prosecutor, on record, to amend indictment the day of trial, when trial court allowed a plea to be entered through a Bill of Information where charge was up graded to a greater charge, when court denied defendant a new counsel, when court entered a plea of guilt even after it was stated on record that defendant did not wish to plead guilty, when trial court attempted to disguise it's Reversible error of denying defendant another counsel then allowed another counsel to stand beside defendant during sentencing, when trial court continued to show prejudice was continued to be shown toward petitioner by refusing to timely submit proper documents and/or respond to motions and/or orders submitted by petitioner and/or the Supreme Court.

Petitioner contends that trial court abused its power of discretion and is "aid by allowing prosecutor to amend indictment the day of trial, leaving petitioner no time to prepare a defense to the indictment that otherwise should have went back before a grand jury which is a jurisdictional defect. Petitioner also contends prosecutor erred as well as the court when the charges made were disguised. See (Exhibit 1) Hearing pg. 2, Lines 10-21 & pg. 13, Lines 14-18; Indictment; Order Amending Indictment; and Petitioner's Amended Indictment).

In US v. Harris, 344 F.3d 803 (8th Cir. 2003); US v. Clemente, 22 F.3d 783 (8th Cir. 1994); it was said that, 1.) The 5th Amendment requires that defendant be tried only on charges handled down by the grand jury and, thus, after indictment has been returned, its charges may not be broadened through amendment except by grand jury. 2.) Variance raise to the level of reversible error where evidence presented at trial together with jury instructions, raise possibility that defendant was convicted of offense other than that charged in indictment US v. Cline, 378 F.3d 71 (1st Cir. 2004) states: "Amending the indictment is considered pretrial procedure and thus demands reversal."

It was said in US v. Rosario-Diaz, 202 F.3d 84 (1st Cir. 2000) that, if a court permits a jury to convict a defendant on evidence of a crime not included in the indictment, the constitutional right to the grand jury is violated. To be sufficient, an indictment must allege each material element of the offense, if it does not, it fails to charge that offense, because an indictment is jurisdictional, a defect in an indictment is not waived by a guilty plea.

"It is reversible error to amend indictment after grand jury has passed upon it." See US v. Huntsman, 959 F.2d 1429 (8th Cir. 1992). Also, see Ex Parte Brian, 221 US 1, 7 S.Ct. 781, 30 L.Ed. 899 (1887) which stated: "The instant that the court amends the indictment, the court loses jurisdiction. At that point in time, there is nothing that can cure that defect. It is a jurisdictional defect. Upon an indictment so changed, the court can proceed no further. There is nothing for which that prisoner can be held to answer. A trial on such indictment is void."

Petitioner argues that trial court erred by allowing a plea to be entered through a Bill of Information where charge was enhanced. See (General Affidavit) where defendant was charged with attempted escape and see (Bill of Information), where charge was up graded to the charge of escape.

Rule (7)(a) of Criminal Procedure, Indictment and the Information states: "Waiver of indictment, an offense which may be punished by imprisonment for a term exceeding one year or at hard labor may be prosecuted by information if the defendant, after having been advised of the nature of the charge and of the right of the

defendant waive in open court pro. v. by indictment. This was not the case when petitioner was not advised that his charged was being enhanced.

Petitioner contends trial court erred by denying him the right to a new counsel when, he on record, requested another because of conflicting interest, and a continuance to obtain another attorney, forcing the petitioner to go along with the plea that he stated he did not wish to accept, and had it not been for these circumstances he would not have agreed to the plea which he did not sign. Petitioner argues that further error was made by attempting to ^{disguise} [REDACTED] it's reversible error of denying petitioner a new counsel yet allowed another counsel to stand beside him during sentencing. See (Guilty Plea Hearing pg. 19, lines 8-24, pg. 20, lines 1-22 & pg. 12, lines 9-11; and Sentencing Hearing pg. 2, lines 11-13 & 23-29).

It was said in Argersinger v. Hamlin, 407 US 25, 92 S.Ct. 2006, 32 LEd 2d 530 (1972); Gideon v. Wainwright, supra; and Johnson v. Zerbst, supra, that a person who happens to be a lawyer is present alongside the accused is not enough to satisfy the constitutional command. The 6th Amendment recognizes the right to the assistance of counsel because it envisions counsel's playing a role that is critical to the ability of the adversarial system to produce just results. "Structural errors" call into question the very accuracy and reliability of the trial process and thus are not amenable to harmless error analysis, but require automatic reversal. See Quintero v. Bell, 286 F.3d 409 (6th Cir. 2001); Showfelt v. Alaska, 228 F.3d 1088 (9th Cir. 2000). If a defendant voices a seemingly substantial complaint about counsel, the court should inquire into the reason for dissatisfaction, see US v. Simeonov 282 F.3d 238 (2nd Cir. 2003). The defendant's 6th Amendment right to be represented by an attorney with undivided loyalty. The same is true is Smith v. State, (Miss. 1998) 666 So. 2d 810. Constitutional Law 268.1(b). It is stated in Universal Acupuncture v. Quadrone and Schwartz, 370 F.3d 259 (2nd Cir. 2004). Under New York law, client may discharge his or her lawyer at any time, with or without cause. I.d., at 1258-1259 (quoting Rummel v. Estell), 590 F.2d 103, 104 CA5 1979.) The court observed that only in cases of outright denial of counsel, of affirmation government interference in the representation process, or of inherently prejudicial conflicts of interest had this court said that no special showing of prejudice need be made. Petitioner contends that this denial of counsel has been shown on record.

Petitioner contends that further errors were shown by trial court's hindering the petitioner by refusing to timely submit proper documents and/or response to motions and/or orders ^{submitted} [REDACTED] by the petitioner and/or Supreme Court, showing more prejudice in the face of justice, thus infringing upon the Due Process right

Petitioner argues that failure of the indictment to appear before grand jury to be amended was in direct violation of indictment of burglary to contain such allegation was finally defective and could not be remedied by amendment. as to the ownership of the building said to have been burglarized being an essential element of an offense. The same was said in Lrosby v. State, 191 Miss. 172, 2 So. 2d 813 (1941), where an allegation of property embezzled is fatally defective, and the defect was not waived by the defendant's failure to which stated, an indictment for embezzlement that does not set out the name of the owner of the concealed. An example of this fatal defect appears in Mayes v. State, 193 So. 2d 728 (Miss. 1967), name is "fatal", and prosecutor, petitioner contend, was aware of this fact and that's why it was victim of an offense, and a failure to state or material variance between statement and proof of the Huges v. State, 207 Miss. 594, 42 So. 2d 805 (1949) states, an indictment "must" state name of

pg. 2, lines 26-26.

that which was shown on the indictment or record. See (Motion to Amend and Guilty Plea Hearing) the reason stated on record as the reason for the amendment to petitioner's indictment did not match (Order Amending Indictment), which does not match the errors stated in motion to amend indictment; intent was disguised to appear to change the spelling and not the actual name of the victim. See to be amended the day of the trial, to change the name of the victim in the indictment, when the petitioner argues that he was denied fundamental fairness of law when trial court allowed his indictment

whether petitioner is denied fundamental fairness and due process of law and notice of charges when indictment was amended to change the name of the victim, when changes was disguised as to not show the changes stated on record with what was in motion to amend or the order amending.

Issue Four

and Receipts of received documents). Show Cause Notice To Court Reporter, and Order. Also, see (Certificate(s) of Clerk; Order from Circuit Court; limits given by Supreme Court to submit these documents. See (1st & 2nd filed Notice of Appeal & Designation; to file proper documents after Notice of Appeal & Designation of Records have been filed and the orders and time in which the petitioner is to be entitled, where MARR only allowed 10 days from date of receipt

of statute that states that overment, indictment as to substance must be made, grand jury. See Hughes v State 665 So.2d 852 (Miss. 1995). Where the Supreme Court has stated that a defendant has a "substantial right to be tried only on charges presented in an indictment returned by a grand jury. Deprivation of such a basic right is for too serious to be treated as nothing more than a variance and then dismissed as harmless error".

Conclusion

In the words of Ralph Waldo Emerson, American poet, Unitarian Minister, Philosopher (1803) as well as those of Henri Frederic Amiel, Swiss Philosopher, Amiel's Journal (1883), Henry David Thoreau, an American Libertarian writer (1849) and the 9th Cir. Justice Levanthal, "Truth is the summit of being."

Justice is the application of it to affairs. Thus, "Truth is not only violated by falsehood; it may be equally outraged by silence". Then, "Whatever the human law may be, neither an individual nor a nation can commit the lest act of injustice against the obscurest individual without having to pay the penalty for it." So, "If the government, police and prosecutors could always be trusted to be right or do the right thing, there would have never been a need for the Bill of Rights."

WHEREFORE, PETITIONERS considered, Petitioner respectfully moves this Honorable Court to grant relief requested, for all the cumulative reasons and evidence stated herein denoting procedure defects in the proceedings leading to this motion, that this Court Reverse, vacate, set aside, or expunge the plea and conviction with prejudice impose a sentence of "time served", ordering the Petitioner's Release forthwith, and/or any other different relief as it may deem just and proper.