IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

CHARLES H. RUDD

APPELLANT

FILED

VS.

APR 1 1 2008

NO. 2006-CP-1249

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
SUPREME COURT
COURT OF APPEALS

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

APPELLEE DOES NOT REQUEST ORAL ARGUMENT

JIM HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL

BY: JEFFREY A. KLINGFUSS

SPECIAL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

MISSISSIPPI BAR NO

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MS 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680

STATEMENT OF THE CASE
STATEMENT OF FACTS 3
SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT 4
ARGUMENT I. THE TRIAL COURT FOUND DEFENDANT'S SECOND PETITION FOR POST-CONVICTION RELIEF TIME BARRED. THE PETITION WAS ALSO A SUCCESSIVE PETITION AND FURTHER BARRED. 5
CONCLUSION 8
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

STATE CASES

Stroud v. State, 2008 WL 928666 (Miss.App. 2008)
STATE STATUTES
Miss. Code Ann. § 99-39-5(2)
Miss. Code Ann. § 99-35-5(2)
Miss. Code Ann. § 99-39-23(6)
Miss. Code Ann. § 99-39-5

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

CHARLES H. RUDD

APPELLANT

VS.

NO. 2006-CP-1249

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The grand jury of Madison County indicted defendant, Charles J. Rudd for the crimes of Armed Robbery & Escape in two separate indictments. On July 17th, 2002 defendant, aided by counsel pled guilty to both charges. Subsequently, about 15 months later, defendant was sentenced to 20 years on the Armed Robbery with 10 suspended and 5 years post-release supervision in addition to 5 years for the Escape to be served consecutively with the other sentence. (Judgment & Sentence, c.p. 49-55).

Within the statutory period for such, defendant did file a motion seeking postconviction relief. (Filed Mar. 4, 2005, c.p. 7-21). It would appear that motion was

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Defendant robbed a Shell Mart gas station convenience store at gun point. He was captured then later escaped from the custody of the Madison Sheriff's department.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

I.

THE TRIAL COURT FOUND DEFENDANT'S SECOND PETITION FOR POST-CONVICTION RELIEF TIME BARRED. THE PETITION WAS ALSO A SUCCESSIVE PETITION AND FURTHER BARRED.

Defendant filed a motion (and amendment) for post-conviction relief. The trial court ruled denying the motion. Defendant did not appeal from the lower courts final order.

After the running of the time for filing motions for post-conviction relief, defendant filed a second, successive petition. The trial court denied this motion as time-barred.

In addition to being time barred it would also be successive writ barred.

No relief should be granted as all of defendant claims are barred and not within an exception.

ARGUMENT

I.

THE TRIAL COURT FOUND DEFENDANT'S SECOND PETITION FOR POST-CONVICTION RELIEF TIME BARRED. THE PETITION WAS ALSO A SUCCESSIVE PETITION AND FURTHER BARRED.

Defendant, *pro se*, seems to be submitting this appeal while operating under several misapprehensions of fact, – and law for that matter.

First, we are in State court, not federal. The applicable statute for the time for filing of post-conviction motions is Miss. Code Ann. § 99-39-5, not § 99-29-5 (Hearing for Arrested Vagrant). And the State does understand how easily that can happen.

Be that as it may, defendant's current appeal is barred in two ways. Defendant would prefer that it all be treated as one loooong petition and denial. The State sees is as several discreet steps – each with a specific legal consequence.

First, Miss. Code Ann. § 99-39-5 clearly states (as defendant quotes)

(2) A motion for relief under this article shall be made within three (3) years after the time in which the prisoner's direct appeal is ruled upon by the Supreme Court of Mississippi or, in case no appeal is taken, within three (3) years after the time for taking an appeal from the judgment of conviction or sentence has expired, or in case of a guilty plea, within three (3) years after entry of the judgment of conviction.

Miss. Code Ann. § 99-39-5(2)

The judgment of conviction was entered on July 17th, 2002. (C.p. 49-51).

According to statute defendant would have three years, until July 17th, 2005 to file a motion requesting relief.

And defendant did, – filing a motion for post-conviction relief December 6, 2004. (C.p.25-38). That would appear was supplemented by yet another petition for post-conviction relief docketed March 4, 2005 (C.p. 7-24).

On April 7, 2005 the trial court denied relief. (C.p 46). The State can find no attempt by defendant to appeal from this order denying relief.

Then in December 2007 *after* the time had expired for filing, defendant filed a second, successive, petition for relief. (Supplemental Volume pages 1-111; C.p. 58-97, filed Dec. 2, 2005).

The trial court denied the motion as time barred outside the time permitted by Miss. Code Ann. § 99-35-5(2). (C.p. 47)

The truth is not only was defendant time barred he was also successive writ barred. *Miss. Code Ann.* § 99-39-23(6). Such double filing on each side of the expiration date is not uncommon and has been dealt with before, to wit:

¶ 5. Thirty days after Stroud's first motion for post-conviction collateral relief was denied, his ability to challenge the validity of his 1997 guilty pleas was exhausted.FN1 See Stroud, 839 So.2d at 610-11 (¶ 4, 6). In the case of his second motion for relief, such finality results not only from its timing, as it was filed well after the three-year limit mandated by the Act, but also from the fact that the February 2006 motion was Stroud's second motion for post-conviction collateral relief, in violation of section 99-39-23(6). Therefore, pursuant to sections 99-39-5(2) and

99-39-23(6), Stroud's current motion for post-conviction relief was properly denied by the trial court.

Stroud v. State, 2008 WL 928666 (Miss.App. 2008).

Defendant is double barred. Time barred as found by the trial court. And, successive writ barred as defendant did not appeal his first denial of post-conviction relief.

Accordingly, the State submits the trial court was correct and the time-bar, alone is sufficient to deny any requested relief. Alternatively, the successive writ bar also prevents defendant from prevailing. Defendant has not claimed that his claims are within an exception to either bar.

The State would ask that no relief be granted.

CONCLUSION

Based upon the arguments presented herein as supported by the record on appeal the State would ask this reviewing court to affirm the trial court denial of post-conviction relief.